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Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Honeywell Electrical Devices 

and Systems India Limited will be held on Tuesday, November 11, 2025 at 12:00 PM at the registered office of the 

Company at 5th, 6th and 7th Floors, North Tower, KRM Plaza No. 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, 

India, 600031 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. 	 To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial Year ended March 

31, 2025, along with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. 	 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal who retires by rotation and being eligible, has 

offered himself for re-appointment. 

3. 	 To appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for 

a further term of 5 years.

	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including 

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), consent of the members 

be and is hereby accorded, to appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP (FRN: 001076N/ N500013), 

Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) years 

from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 45th Annual General Meeting (to be 

held for financial year 2029-30), at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. 	 Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditors:

	 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the remuneration payable to M/s. C. S. Adawadkar & 

Co, Cost Accountant, having FRN: 100401, appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditor of the Company 

to audit the Cost records of the company for the financial year 2025-26, amounting to Rs. 1,75,000/- (Rupees 

One Lakh Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus the payment of GST as applicable and reimbursement of out-of-

pocket expenses to be incurred, if any, in connection with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified and 

confirmed.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to 

do all such acts, deeds & things and to execute documents, writings as he may in its absolute discretion 

deem necessary or incidental and pay such fees, etc. and incur such expenses in relation thereto as it may 

deem appropriate for giving effect to this resolution including but not limited to filing of necessary forms and 

documents with statutory authorities and with any other regulatory authorities, as may be required.”

5. 	 Appointment of Mr. Sameer Mahajan as Director

	 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION:

Notice
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Notice

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 

force), Mr. Sameer Mahajan (DIN: 11089242), who was co-opted as an Additional Director of the Company on 

June 10, 2025 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed 

as Director of the Company who is liable to retire by rotation.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do 

all such acts, deeds, matters and things as in his/her absolute discretion he/she may consider necessary, 

expedient or desirable and to settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto and the Board 

shall have absolute power to decide breakup of the remuneration and in order to give effect to the forgoing 

resolution, or as may be otherwise considered by it to be in the best interest of the Company.”

6. 	 Appointment of Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal as an Independent Director

	 To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an ORDINARY 
RESOLUTION:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable provisions, 

read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 

force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board 

of Directors of the Company, Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal (DIN: 09393000), who  was co-opted by the board as 

an Additional Non-executive Independent Director on June 10, 2025 and who holds office  up to the date of 

this Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence 

under section 149 (6) of the act, in respect of whom the company has received a notice in writing under 

section 160 of the act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of the Director, be and is hereby 

appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold the office 

for a first term of 5 (five) consecutive years, commencing from June 10, 2025 to June 09, 2030.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all 

such acts, deeds, matters and things as in their absolute discretion they may consider necessary, expedient 

or desirable and to settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto and the Board shall have 

absolute power to decide other benefits if any and in order to give effect to the forgoing resolution, or as may 

be otherwise considered by it to be in the best interest of the Company.”

Notes:

1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 

and vote in the meeting and the proxy need not be a member of the company.

2.	 The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 

48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

3.	 Members / proxies should bring duly filled Attendance Slips sent herewith to attend the meeting.

4.	 The Statutory Registers maintained under the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the 

members at the Annual General Meeting.

5.	 Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

6.	 The 40th AGM is being convened at the registered office of the Company which can be attended by the 

members physically. Further, pursuant to General Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (to the 

extent applicable to the Company), the members are given an additional opportunity to attend the 40th AGM 

through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means (VC/OAVM) mode through the link provided below:
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Notice

	 https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjZmZDgzNDctYWE0Yy00YmYxLTk1ZWMtY2IwYjU

zMWRjYTA4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2296ece526-9c7d-48b0-8daf-8b93c90a5d18%2

2%2c%22Oid%22%3a%223e9a36d2-3700-4d16-8d67-ba27e7fdcb30%22%7d

7.	 A route map to the venue of the AGM has been provided at the end of the Annual Report.

8.	 The Company has initiated the process for dematerialisation of shares and has also intimated its shareholders 

of the same. The Shareholders are requested to approach their respective Depository Participants (DPs) 

and submit the necessary application and share certificates for dematerialisation. In case of any queries, the 

shareholders may write to IndiaCorporateSecretarial@Honeywell.com and investor.heds@gmail.com.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. C. S. 

Adawadkar & Co, Cost Accountant to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial 

year 2025-26.

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be 

ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, the members are requested to ratify the remuneration 

payable to the Cost Auditors for audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 as set 

out in the resolution for the aforesaid services to be rendered by them.

	 None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the company and their relatives are in any way 

interested or concerned in the resolution. The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 4 for 

approval of the members.

Details of Directors to be appointed/ re-appointed at the 40th AGM to be held on Tuesday, November 11 in terms 
of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2).

Item No. 2, 5 & 6

Name Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal 
(DIN: - 06927467)

Mr. Sameer Mahajan  
(DIN: - 11089242)

Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal 
(DIN: - 09393000)

Date of Birth and Age 04 October 1976, 

Age: 45 Years

22 March 1971, 

Age: 54 Years

10 May 1962, 

Age: 63 Years

Date of First Appointment 
on Board, if any

February 04, 2021 June 10, 2025 June 10, 2025

Qualification Chartered Accountant, 

Cost Accountant, B. Com 

(Hons)

B.E. in Electronics 

& Communication 

Engineering and MBA in 

International Trade 

Graduate
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Name Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal 
(DIN: - 06927467)

Mr. Sameer Mahajan  
(DIN: - 11089242)

Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal 
(DIN: - 09393000)

Experience He has more than 27 years 

of experience working with 

Fortune 500 companies 

like Honeywell, PepsiCo & 

Tata Steel.

He has 30 years of 

experience in Electrical 

Products Industry. He has 

worked with Polycab India 

Ltd., Legrand (India) group, 

ABB and Havells India 

ltd. group where he held 

various positions in Sales, 

Marketing and Business 

Development.

He has 29 years of working 

experience as Police 

officer in different districts 

of state of Maharashtra 

and retired in May 2022 as 

police commissioner.

Directorship held in other 
companies

Nil Nil 1, Nashik Cyclist 

Foundation

M e m b e r s h i p / 
Chairmanship of 
Committees across all 
Companies

He is a Member 

of Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

and Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee.

He does not hold 

membership/ chairmanship 

of committees in any other 

company.

He is a Member of 

Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee.

He does not hold 

membership/ chairmanship 

of committees in any other 

company.

He is a Member of Audit 

Committee, Nomination 

and Remuneration 

Committee and Corporate 

Social Responsibility 

Committee. 

He does not hold 

membership/ chairmanship 

of committees in any other 

company.

Number of Shares held in 
the Company as on date 
of this Notice

Nil Nil Nil

Terms and Conditions 
of Appointment or Re- 
appointment including 
Remuneration

The members confirmed 

his appointment as a 

director in the AGM held 

on December 15, 2021 

Pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 161 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. It is 

proposed to appoint Mr. 

Agarwal as Director of the 

Company, since he is liable 

to retire by rotation and 

eligible for re-appointment 

as director.

The Board appointed  

Mr. Mahajan as an 

Additional Director of the 

Company on June 10, 

2025. Pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 161 

of the Companies Act, 

2013,

Mr. Mahajan holds office up 

to the date of the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting. It 

is proposed to appoint Mr. 

Mahajan as Director of the 

Company.

The Board appointed  

Mr. Baijal as an Additional 

Director of the Company on 

June 10, 2025. Pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 

149, 161 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, 

Mr. Baijal holds office up 

to the date of the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting. It 

is proposed to appoint Mr. 

Baijal as Director of the 

Company.

Notice
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Name Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal 
(DIN: - 06927467)

Mr. Sameer Mahajan  
(DIN: - 11089242)

Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal 
(DIN: - 09393000)

Relationship with other 
Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company

Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal 

is not related to any of the 

directors or KMP of the 

Company. 

Mr. Mahajan is not related 

to any of the directors or 

KMP of the Company. 

Mr. Baijal is not related 

to any of the directors or 

KMP of the Company. 

Number of Meetings of the 
Board Attended during 
the year

The number of meetings 

attended by Mr. Agarwal is 

as disclosed elsewhere in 

the Directors’ Report.

NA NA

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF

HONEYWELL ELECTRICAL DEVICES AND SYSTEMS INDIA LIMITED

Nagendranath Shankarappa
Director
DIN: 10186938

Date: September 27, 2025

Notice
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Director’s Report

Dear Members,

Your directors are pleased to present the Directors’ Report of the Company along with the Balance Sheet and Profit 

and Loss Account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Your company achieved a turnover of Rs. 15,751 Lakhs and the profit after tax of Rs. 887 Lakhs. The key aspects of 

the financial performance of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 are tabulated below:
			   (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2025

Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Year on Year 
Change (%)

Sales & Other Income 16,263 15,970 1.8

EBIDTA 1,626 2,106 -22.8

Less: Interest 20 51 -60.8

Less: Depreciation 415 506 -17.9

Profit before tax for the year 1,191 1,549 -23.1

Less: Income tax and deferred tax expenses 304 405 -24.9

Profit after tax for the year 887 1,144 -22.5

Profit brought forward from the previous year 12,083 10,939 10.5

Profit available for appropriations 12,970 12,083 7.3

Dividend - - -

Balance carried forward 12,970 12,083 7.3

RESERVES 

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserve during the year. The Company has carried the amount of 

Profit for the year i.e. Rs. 887 Lakhs to the Surplus Account. 

DIVIDEND

In view of the profit gained in the current year, Directors do not recommend any dividend on equity share capital of 

the company.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT

In 2024-25, market conditions for the construction industry was sluggish due to general election which usually leads 

to tight liquidity. NBFC and banks were more cautious in lending money to real estate developers impacting project 

financing. While inflation remained moderate, real income growth for middle class remained flat-ish which created 

mismatch between property prices and purchase power. Infrastructure projects and housing schemes (like PMAY) 



Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited
Annual Report 2024-25

8

saw temporary slowdowns, affecting demand in affordable housing. Post election, recovery was seen in Q4 which 

was driven by policy continuity and restart of stalled projects. 

Horizon 2.0 was introduced in Q2 as a Mid Segment Wiring Devices and Impact Circuit Protection 3.0 in Q4. These 

were successor product lines in the same segment where we were marginally degrowing. These new products 

helped us to retain our existing loyal customer base and arrest the degrowth and our SOD for the segment. 

THE YEAR AHEAD 

We continue to scale up the new products launched recently by executing the identified Go-to-market strategy. The 

company’s focus remains on growth through strategic actions including, but not limited to, consolidation of market 

share in key regions, growth in verticals like Healthcare and Pharma, and strengthening of the Circuit Protection 

portfolio. During the upcoming year, company also aims to launch new product range - Evo 2.0 Soft Switch Range 
& IOT Home Automation Range to improve NPI vitality & provide a digital solution for its distributors and channel 

partners, driving continuous innovation and efficiency in business conduct.

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATION

Hopetown facility continues to be associated with CII (Confederation of Indian Industry) & UIWA (Uttarakhand 

Industrial Welfare Association) and through the association attends regular calls & meetings to get the latest updates 

about industries.

Hopetown Site won “CII Quality Circle Competition” as Special Recognition in the 37th Quality Circle Preliminary 

Competition 2024 organized by Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) - Uttarakhand Edition on 30th August’ 2024, 

in which more than 40+ teams representing 25+ companies covering 220+ employees.

Site also received two Global Recognitions for; “People Choice Award” & “BA Kaizen of the Quarter”. First Recognition 

from Torsten Pilz (SVP & Chief Supply Chain Officer) i.e. “People Choice Award” to Hopetown Site to appreciate 

our commitment towards excellence and customer satisfaction. Hopetown site recognized for their Best Kaizen idea 

sharing on Quality improvement & got highest number of votes in this Honeywell Global Cross SBG initiatives.

Hopetown Site participated in National Level Case study competition at the 14th case study convention on Quality 

Concepts-HCCQC2024 held at Haridwar on 6th Oct’24 conducted by Quality Circle forum of India & our Hopetown 

team  has declared as “Gold award Winner”, competing with other major brands like ITC, BHEL, SAIL , Havells, 

Legrand, Hero, Standard, THDCIL, Cavendish, Panasonic, Genus Power, Sun Pharma, Tata Toyo Radiators & many 

more. There was the huge participation from other industries as close to 160+ teams from 65+ companies with 825+ 

employees from various industries took part in this competition. 

Hopetown Site Six Sigma capability improved | All B3 GB 100% & Lean Expert improved from 2 to 4 employees.

Hopetown site received Capital Subsidy of $32.5K amount from SIDCUL

SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

HT Site is committed to go zero carbon neutral by year 2035, towards it identified sustainability & energy saving 

projects & keenly focus towards on time project executions. We also initiated Green Pro Certification for products 

being manufactured at Hopetown site and expected to complete them with due diligence in coming year. Hopetown 

Site adjudged as the “EHS Consistency Award Winner” in 11th CII NR Inter Industry Competition on Environment 

Health and Safety (EHS) held from 20 – 21 June 2024 in Gurugram.

Employee development initiatives continued and top talent retention programs are reviewed in MRR, HR Varatlap 

Director’s Report



Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited
Annual Report 2024-25

9

(employee connect forum), Chai pe Charcha, and Open house with the site leader & site leader’s meeting with 

associates on a regular basis. We have a two-way communication process between Management and Employees, 

through regular town hall meetings and leadership interactions at the site. Company’s long-term strategies reviewed 

and developed STRAP.

DEPOSITS 

In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules of the Act, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review and as such, no amount of principal or interest 

was outstanding as of March 31, 2025.

SHARE CAPITAL 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores Only) divided into 20,00,000 

(Twenty Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. The paid-up Share Capital of the company is 

9,51,640 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 95,16,400/- (Rupees Ninety-Five Lakhs Sixteen Thousand 

and Four Hundred Only).

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal, retires by rotation at the forthcoming 

AGM and being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment. The Board recommends his reappointment.

The composition of the Board of Directors as of March 31, 2025, was as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director (Non-Executive)

2. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Director (Non-Executive)

3. Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa Director (Non-Executive)

Mr. Inder Jeet Singh has completed his second tenure as an independent director, thus he retired from the post of 

directorship with effect from 29th March 2025.

After the closure of Financial Year 2024-25, on 10th June 2025 Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal, Independent Director 

and Mr. Sameer Mahajan, Director were appointed on the Board of the Company as an additional director. Their 

regularisation is set as an agenda item in the forthcoming AGM.

The composition of the Board of Directors as on Date of this report, is as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director

2. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Director 

3. Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa Director

4. Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal Independent Director

5. Mr. Sameer Mahajan Director

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under section 164(1) & 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Director’s Report



Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited
Annual Report 2024-25

10

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR UNDER SUB-SECTION (6) OF SECTION 
149

The Company has received necessary declarations from the Independent Directors under Section 149 (7) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of Independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Company has the following Committees:

1.	 Audit Committee 

2.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3.	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee  

The composition of each of the above Committees, their respective roles and responsibilities is as detailed below:

1.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

	 During the year, there was no change in the Composition of the Audit Committee. The Committee comprises 

of Members as on 31st March 2025

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director

2. Mr. Inder Jeet Singh Independent Director 

3. Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa Director 

	 After the retirement of Mr. Inder Jeet Singh and appointment of Mr. Baijal, the composition of Audit Committee 

comprises as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director

2. Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal Independent Director 

3. Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa Director 

	 The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management’s 

financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with the highest levels of transparency, 

integrity, and quality of financial reporting, and to deal with all matters as per section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

2.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

	 During the year, there was no change in the Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The Committee comprises of Members as on 31st March 2025

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director

2. Mr. Inder Jeet Singh Independent Director 

3. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Director 

Director’s Report
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	 After the retirement of Mr. Inder Jeet Singh and appointment of Mr. Baijal, the composition of Audit Committee 

comprises as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director

2. Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal Independent Director 

3. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Director 

	 The Committee is responsible for formulating criteria for determining the remuneration of individual members 

of the Board of Directors of the Company and dealing with all matters as per section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

3.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

	 During the year, there was no change in the Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 

The Committee comprises of Members as on 31st March 2025 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director 

2. Mr. Inder Jeet Singh Independent Director 

3. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Director 

4. Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa Director 

	 After the retirement of Mr. Inder Jeet Singh and appointment of Mr. Baijal, the composition of Audit Committee 

comprises as follows: 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation 

1. Mr. Virender Shankar Independent Director 

2. Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal Independent Director 

3. Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal Director 

4. Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa Director 

Your Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be 

undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

and the Board. Since the company had profits more than the thresholds for CSR Applicability in the current 

financial year, and hence the Company is required to make any CSR expenditure for the current year, and 

hence report on CSR is annexed.

Director’s Report
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The details of meetings of the Board and its Committees and Directors attending the same are given below:

A.	 BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

	 The Board met four (4) times during the year; attendance is as follows:			 

S. 
No.

Date of Meeting

Attended by

Inder Jeet Singh* Virender Shankar Satish Kumar 
Agarwal

Nagendranath 
Shankarappa

1. June 10, 2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes

2. August 23, 2024 Yes Yes Yes No

3. December 05, 2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes

4. March 18, 2025 Yes Yes No Yes

	 * Mr. Inder Jeet Singh retired from the post of directorship w.e.f. March 29, 2025

B.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 The Audit Committee met four (4) times during the year, attendance is as follows:

S. 
No.

Date of Meeting
Attended by

Inder Jeet Singh Virender Shankar Nagendranath Shankarappa

1. June 10, 2024 Yes Yes Yes

2. August 23, 2024 Yes Yes No

3. December 05, 2024 Yes Yes Yes

4. March 18, 2025 Yes Yes Yes

C.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had met once during the year. Attendance of the members for 

the same is given below: 

S. 
No.

Date of Meeting
Attended by

Inder Jeet Singh Virender Shankar Satish Kumar Agarwal

1. August 23, 2024 Yes Yes Yes

D.	 CSR COMMITTEE

	 The CSR Committee had met once during the year. Attendance of the members for the same is given below:

S. 
No.

Date of Meeting

Attended by

Inder Jeet Singh Virender Shankar Satish Kumar 
Agarwal

Nagendranath 
Shankarappa

1. December 05, 2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes

Director’s Report
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY 

In terms of the provisions of sub-section (10) of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company’s Audit 

Committee oversees the Vigil Mechanism. The Company is aligned with the Honeywell Group framework for its 

Code of Conduct, including the whistle-blower policy for directors and employees to report genuine concerns or 

grievances. The Company also has a helpline/mailer where complaints/concerns can be filed.

COMPANYS’ POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

In terms of provisions of clause(s) of sub – section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company 

has formulated the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, and independence of a Director and a 

policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The criteria 

and the policy are as under:

Policy relating to Directors

a.	 The person to be chosen as a Director shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise and experience to have 

a diverse Board having expertise in the fields of Information Technology, sales /marketing, finance, taxation, 

law, governance, and general management.

b.	 In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Board shall satisfy itself with regard to the independent 

nature of the Directors vis-à-vis the Company to enable the Board to discharge its function and duties 

effectively.

c.	 The Board / Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending the candidature 

for appointment as Director:

	 (i) Qualification, expertise, and experience of the Directors in their respective fields.

	 (ii) Personal, Professional or business standing; and

	 (iii) Diversity of the Board.

d. 	 In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the performance 

evaluation of the Director and his engagement level.

Remuneration Policy

The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual employees and 

the Company. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites, and allowances (fixed 

component) and performance incentives, commission (variable component) to its Whole-Time Director and other 

Executive Directors. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

In terms of the provisions of clause (n) of sub – section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company has a robust policy to identify and evaluate business risks and opportunities. The Company has in place a 

mechanism to identify, assess, monitor, and mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified 

by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. This 

framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the business objectives, and enhance the 
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Company’s competitive advantage. These are discussed at various department level meetings of the Company. The 

Company has identified various risks and also has mitigation plans for each risk identified.  

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

In terms of the provisions of clause (n) of sub – section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company 

has a proper and adequate system of internal controls. This ensures that all transactions are authorized, recorded, 

and reported correctly, and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. 

In addition, there are operational controls and fraud risk controls, covering the entire spectrum of internal financial 

controls. The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During 

the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed. 

The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity 

of its operations. These are routinely tested by Internal Auditors. Significant audit observations and follow-up actions 

thereon are reported to the Management / Board.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

There was a separate meeting of the Independent Directors (without the presence of non-independent directors 

and members of the management). The discussions covered both strategic and operational aspects of the Board’s 

functioning, as well as the quality, content, and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management and 

the Board.   

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

The Company has no subsidiary company as of the end of the financial year March 31, 2025. 

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, since the Company does not have its own website, thus it 

is not required to upload its Annual Return on the website and a copy of the Annual Return shall be filed with the 

Registrar of Companies. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and the Directors, the 

management, the subsidiaries, or the relatives except for those disclosed in the financial statements. Particulars 

as prescribed under contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in Form AOC -2 is attached to the report as  

Annexure 1.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

In compliance with clause (c) of sub – section (3) of section 134 and sub- section (5) of section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm, and state as follows:

1.	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures.
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2.	 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that were  reasonable and prudent  to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025.

3.	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4.	 the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

5.	 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, AND INVESTMENTS MADE BY THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company has not made any loans or investments to any persons within the meaning of Section 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and has also not given any guarantees within the meaning of that section.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under clause (m) of sub – section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are set out in Annexure 2.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS

There are no significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal that would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future operations. However, members’ attention is drawn to the 

statement on contingent liabilities and commitments in the notes forming part of the Financial Statements. 

COST RECORDS

As per the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Cost Records are be maintained by the Company 

for certain products. The Company has maintained all the required records for F.Y. 2024-25.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, were appointed to act as Statutory Auditor for a period of 

5 years from the conclusion of 35th Annual General meeting (for the financial year 2019-2020) till conclusion of 40th 

Annual General Meeting (to be held for the financial year 2024-25) of the Company retires at conclusion of this AGM.

Further, it is proposed to appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 

001076N/N500013), to act as Statutory Auditor for period of 5 years from conclusion of this Annual General meeting 

till conclusion of 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company. M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP has consented 

to Act as statutory auditor and has confirmed that their appointment will be within the limits prescribed under the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Director’s Report
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The Company has also received declaration from Auditors that they are not disqualified for such appointment under 

the said act.

The Board recommends the appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP as Statutory Auditor of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their report are 

self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

 

COST AUDITORS 

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Cost Audit is applicable to your Company for the financial year 

2024-25.

Your Company submitted its Cost Audit Report for the FY 2024-25, duly audited by 

M/s Chandrashekar S Adawadkar, Cost Accountants, with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the stipulated 

time. The Board has reappointed him as the Cost Auditor for the year 2025-26. A resolution seeking approval from 

members for their remuneration for their appointment for the F.Y. 2025-26 forms part of the Notice of AGM.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

As the Company is an unlisted company, it is not required to disclose the details of employee remuneration in this 

report.

Additional disclosures relating to employees:

Number of employees during the financial year Male Female Transgender

205 168 37 -

DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a Policy on prevention, 

prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention 

and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to 

redress complaints received.

Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints received 0

Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints disposed off 1

Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints pending beyond 90 days. 1

PROCEEDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

No application or any proceeding has been filed against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 

2016 (31 of 2016) (“IBC Code”) during the financial year 2024-25.

Director’s Report



Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited
Annual Report 2024-25

17

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME 
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:

The Company has not made any one-time settlement, therefore, the same is not applicable.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company is in compliance with the provisions of Secretarial Standard 1 for Board Meetings and Secretarial 

Standard 2 for General Meeting to the extent applicable. 

STATEMENT THAT COMPANY HAS COMPLIED WITH MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT.

The company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 to the extent applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors acknowledge the support and cooperation received from business partners and investors. The 

Directors are proud and thankful to each and every employee, each of whom has contributed to the growth of 

the Company. The support received from the Government of India was valuable and is thankfully acknowledged. 

We thank all our stakeholders for the confidence reposed in us and for the support they have given in building the 

success of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited

Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Kumar Agarwal 
Director		  Director
DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Date: 	August 29, 2025	 Date: August 29, 2025
Place: 	  	 Place:  	
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ANNEXURE - I

Form No. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the  
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to 
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transactions under 
the third proviso thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis - None

2. 	 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis - All the transactions are on 

an ongoing basis and in the ordinary course of business and at arms’ length and are disclosed in the Financial 

Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited

Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Kumar Agarwal 
Director		  Director
DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Date: 	August 29, 2025	 Date: August 29, 2025
Place: 		  Place:
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ANNEXURE - II 

Details of conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

(a)	 Conservation of energy

Your Company continues to make every effort to conserve the energy required for all its operations. Some of 

the key initiatives undertaken during the period ended March 31, 2025, areas under: 

Hope Town:

Year 2024-25 Energy Saving Program

Total Energy Saving in FY 2024-25 is 1.9% against PY (By Servo motor conversion for 6 molding machines, 

Installation of Dehumidifiers, by using Invertor ACs, By Submersible Motor Interlocking with level switch).

(b) 	 Technology Absorption

	Y our Company is an affiliate company of Honeywell International Inc., and on merits, it continues to have ac-

cess to some of the latest products and technology of the parent Company. 

(c) 	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

	 During the year, the total foreign exchange used was Rs. 222 Lakhs, and the total foreign exchange earned 

was Rs. 65 Lakhs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited

Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Kumar Agarwal 
Director		  Director
DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Date: 	August 29, 2025	 Date: August 29, 2025
Place: 		  Place:
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Annexure -III

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

(For Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025)

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

	 The Company is committed to improve the world we live in by creating, supporting, and nurturing programs 

and initiatives that serve local communities. Honeywell Group, India has established a not-for-profit organiza-

tion – Honeywell Hometown Solutions India Foundation (HHSIF) – to undertake all CSR activities in a unified 

manner for all its India entities. Together with leading public and non-profit institutions, the Company has 

developed powerful programs to address needs in the communities it serves. The cities, towns, and villages 

where any of the Honeywell Group Companies has its operations and where our employees live and raise their 

families are not just addresses to us – they’re our hometowns. By applying the same rigor and business tools 

we use in the workplace, HHSIF builds programs that deliver results we can quantify: one community, one 

home, one teacher, and one student at a time.

	 We combine CSR strategy and community outreach with both financial support and volunteerism to address 

core community needs in areas where we have unique expertise. 

	 Our vision is based on three critical areas-

•	 Education, Skill & Research

•	 Sustainable and Holistic Community Development

•	 Humanitarian Relief

	 In addition to above thematic areas Honeywell ensures that the programs defined under each of the thematic 

area will include the spirit of ‘Diversity and Inclusion’ and protects environment and natural resources and 

promotes environmental sustainability.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director Designation 
/ Nature of 

Directorship

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

held during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the year

1 Inder Jeet Singh Independent Director 1 1

2 Virender Shankar Independent Director 1 1

3 Satish Kumar Agarwal Director 1 1

4 Nagendranath Shankarappa Director 1 1

 

3.	 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

board are disclosed on the website of the company.

	 The Company does not have its own website. However, Honeywell Group, India has established a not-for-

profit organization – Honeywell Hometown Solutions India Foundation (HHSIF) acting as implementing agency 
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manages the webpage for all Honeywell Group India Entities detailing Company’s Composition of the CSR 

Committee, CSR Policy and the project approved.

https://www.honeywell.com/in/en/csr

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in 

pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. Not applicable.

5.	 (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135- INR14,27,32,269/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 - INR 28,54,645/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years-NA

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. -NA

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] - INR 28,54,645/-

6.	 (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). - INR 28,54,645/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. -Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.- NA

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. - INR 28,54,645/-

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: INR 28,54,645/-

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year. 

(In Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section (6) of section 135.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second proviso to section (5) of 

section 135.

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund  Amount Date of transfer

28,54,645/-  -  - - - -

	 (f)  Excess amount for set-off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(1) (2) (3)

(I) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of 

section 135

INR 28,54,645/-

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year INR 28,54,645/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]  -

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 

previous financial years, if any 

 -

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]  -

	  -
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7.	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: NA

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. 
No.

Preceding  
Financial 

Year.

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR  
Account un-
der subsec-
tion (6) of 

section 135 
(in Rs.)

Amount 
in Un-

spent CSR 
Account 

under sub-
section (6) 
of section 

135 (in 
Rs.)

Amount 
Spent in 
the Fi-
nancial 
Year (in 

Rs)

Amount transferred to a 
Fund as specified under 

Schedule VII as per second 
proviso to subsection (5) of 

section 135, if any.

Amount 
remain-
ing to be 
spent in 
succeed-
ing finan-
cial years. 

(In Rs.)

Defi-
ciency, 
if any

Name 
of the 
Fund

Amount 
(in Rs).

Date of 
transfer.

1. FY - 1  NA           

2. FY - 2 NA          

3. FY - 3 NA          

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 

spent in the Financial Year: - No

              Yes                  No

	 If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired       

	 Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year: 

Sl. 
No.

Short particulars of the 
property or asset(s) 
[including complete address 
and location of the property]

Pincode 
of the 
property or 
asset(s)

Date of 
creation

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent

Details of entity/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered 
owner

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Registra-

tion Number, 

if applicable

Name Registered 

address

Not Applicable
					        

9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 

135(5). – NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited

Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Kumar Agarwal 
Director		  Director
DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Date: 	August 29, 2025	 Date: August 29, 2025
Place: 		  Place:
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited 

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity 

for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting 

policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give 

a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, 

(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified 

under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 

in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the 

Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

•	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Board’s report including specific Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not 

include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

•	 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon.

•	 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 

our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

•	 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section  134(5) of the  Act with  respect  

to  the  preparation  of  these  financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with the provisions of 

the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  

selection  and  application  of  appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  

reasonable  and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
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uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 

in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls 

that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period.. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those , except for not keeping backup on a daily basis of such books 

of account maintained in electronic mode in a server physically located in India (refer Note 39 to the 

financial statements) and not complying with the requirement of audit trail (refer Note 40 to the financial 

statements) as stated in (i)(vi) below. 

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 

Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the relevant books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of 

the Act.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on  March 31, 2025 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on  March 31, 2025 from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)	 The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, are 

as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 

of the Company’s   internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.  

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

	 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions 

of Section 197 of the Act.

i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements; 

ii.	 The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 

for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts - 

Refer Note 33 to the financial statements; 

iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.	 (a)	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed 

in the note 36B to the financial statements no funds   have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (b)  	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed 

in the note 36B to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company 

from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly 

or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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	 (c)  	 Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 

under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.	 The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final 

dividend for the year.

vi.	 Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a 

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 

for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, in respect of one software, audit 

trail was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes, if any. Consequently, 

we are unable to comment whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being 

tampered with.

	 Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail 

feature being tampered with, in respect of said accounting software for the period for which the 

audit trail feature was enabled and operating.

	 Additionally, the audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended March 31, 2024, has 

been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated 

in Note 40 to the financial statements.

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 

in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

 Kedar Raje
Partner

Place: Pune	 (Membership No. 102637)

Date: 23 August, 2024                                		                              UDIN: 25102637BMKSPC7750
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 

of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Honeywell Electrical 
Devices and Systems India Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind 

AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements based on criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 

control with reference to financial statements  includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
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maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 

and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to 

financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements  and such internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements  were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based the criteria for internal 

financial control with reference to financial statements  established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

 

Kedar Raje
Partner

Place: Pune	 (Membership No. 102637)

Date: 23 August, 2024	 UDIN: 25102637BMKSPC7750

Annexure ‘A’ to Independent
Auditors’ Report
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Reporting on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of 

even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and 

records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work-in-progress and relevant details of 

right-of-use assets.

               	 (B)	 The Company does not have intangible assets hence reporting under clause 3(i) of the Order is 

not applicable.

	 (b)	 The Company has a program of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital work in progress 

and right-of-use assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of three years which, 

in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the 

year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and 

explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	 Based on our examination of the title deeds and property tax paid receipts provided to us, we report 

that, the title deed of all the immovable property, (other than immovable properties where the Company 

is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the 

financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company as 

at the balance sheet date. 

	 (d)  	 The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right-ofuse assets) 

during the year.

`	 (e)  	 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 

31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act , 1988 (as 

amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)	 (a) 	 The inventories , except for goods in transit, were physically verified during the year by the Management 

at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 

coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size 

of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for 

each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with 

books of account.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanation given to us, at any point of time of the year, the Company 

has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or financial institutions and hence 

reporting under clause 3 (ii) (b) of the order is not applicable.

(iii)	 The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any loans or 

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or 

any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable.
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(iv)	 According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made 

investments or provided guarantees or securities that are covered under the provisions of sections 185 or 186 

of the Act, and hence reporting under clause 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public 

and hence reporting under clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi)	 The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the 

Act, We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 

of Section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been 

made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 

determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

(vii)	 In respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident 

Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Service Tax (GST), Cess and 

other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a 

delay in respect of remittance of employees’ state insurance and professional tax.

		  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 

Income-tax, Customs Duty, GST, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 

for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

	 (b)	 Details of dues referred to sub clause (a) above, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 

on account of disputes are given below:

Nature 
of Due

Forum where Pending
Period to which it 

pertains

Amount 
Unpaid

Amount paid 
under protest

( Rs. Lakhs) ( Rs. Lakhs)

Respective Sales Tax Laws - Value Added Tax (VAT)

GST Additional Commissioner, 

Uttarakhand

FY 2017-18 44.48 -

VAT Additional Commissioner, 

Delhi

FY 2007-08 to 2011-12 34.40 21.74

VAT High Court, Haryana FY 2013-14 to 2017-18 69.51 29.79

VAT Additional Commissioner, 

Tamil Nadu

FY 2010-11 to 2017-18 238.99 330.31

(viii)	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 

income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix)	 (a)	 The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under clause 3 

(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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	 (b)	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 

or any government authority.

	 (c)	 The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term loans at the 

beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 

company.

	 (d)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis 

have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

	 (e)	 The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and hence, 

reporting under clause 3 (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (f)	 The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3 (ix)(f) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)	 (a)	 The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the year and hence 

reporting under clause  3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (b)	 During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(b) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)	 (a)	 To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the year. 

	 (b)	 To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed 

in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

	 (c)	 We have taken into consideration the whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the 

year and provided to us, when performing our audit.

(xii)	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company.

(xiii)	 In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all 

transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	 In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system as 

per provisions of the Act.

(xv)	 In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors 

or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act  are not applicable to the 

Company.

(xvi)	 (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (b)	 The group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as a part of the group and accordingly 

reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the order is not applicable.
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(xvii)	 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

(xviii)	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix)	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment 

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty 

exists as on the date of the audit report indicating the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 

at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within period of one year from the balance sheet 

date. We however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 

that, our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 

nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)	 The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there 

are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act or 

special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

 												                Kedar Raje
          Partner

Place: Pune	 (Membership No. 102637)

Date: 23 August, 2024	 UDIN: 25102637BMKSPC7750

Annexure ‘B’ to Independent
Auditors’ Report
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Balance sheet as at  
31st March 2025

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Notes As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment  4  965  826 

(b) Right-Of-Use Assets 28  127  201 

(c) Capital work in progress  4  -    -   

(d) Financial assets   

     (i)	Other financial assets  7  103  91 

(e) Income tax assets 8  367  145 

(f) Deferred tax assets (net)  9  547  563 

(g) Other non-current assets  10  535  592 

Total non-current assets   2,644  2,418 
Current assets  
(a) Inventories  11  2,061  1,923 

(b) Financial assets  

     (i)  Trade receivables  5  4,965  4,489 

     (ii)  Cash and cash equivalents  6  8,148  9,750 

     (iii) Other financial assets  7  14  -   

(c) Other current assets  10  143  170 

Total current assets   15,331  16,332 
Total Assets    17,975  18,750 

Equity and Liabilities  
Equity  
(a) Equity share capital  12  95  95 

(b) Other equity  13  12,755  11,878 

Total Equity   12,850  11,973 
Liabilities   
Non-current liabilities  
(a) Financial Liabilities   

     (i)	Lease liabilities   15  64  152 

(b) Provisions  14  115  180 

Total non-current liabilities   179  332 
Current liabilities  
(a) Financial liabilities   

     (i)	 Lease liabilities 15  88  79 

     (ii) Trade payables 16

	  (A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  385  336 

	  (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  2,261  3,093 

     (iii) Other financial liabilities   17  586  806 

(b) Other current liabilities  18  597  970 

(c) Provisions   14  1,029  1,136 

(d) Income tax liabilities 8  -    25 

Total current liabilities   4,946  6,445 
Total Equity and Liabilities   17,975  18,750 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
In terms of our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number - FRN 117366W/W100018
Chartered Accountants 

Kedar Raje	 Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Agarwal
Partner	 Director	 Director
Membership No: 102637	 DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Place : Pune	 Place : Gurugram	 Place : Gurugram
Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
In terms of our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number - FRN 117366W/W100018
Chartered Accountants 

Kedar Raje	 Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Agarwal
Partner	 Director	 Director
Membership No: 102637	 DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Place : Pune	 Place : Gurugram	 Place : Gurugram
Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025

Statement of Profit and Loss for  
the year ended 31st March 2025

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(I) Revenue from operations 19 15,751  15,767 

(II) Other Income 20 512  203 

(III) Total Income (I + II) 16,263  15,970 

(IV) Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21  3,756  2,783 

Purchases of Stock in Trade  4,805  5,632 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 22  (111)  177 

Employee benefits expense 23  3,244  2,761 

Finance costs 24  20  51 

Depreciation and amortization expense 4 & 28  415  506 

Other expenses 25  2,943  2,511 

Total expenses  15,072  14,421 

(V) Profit before tax (III - IV)  1,191  1,549 

(VI) Income tax expense:
- Current tax  279  471 

- Deferred tax  25  (77)

- Relating to earlier years   -    11 

Total tax expense  304  405 

(VII) Profit for the year (V-VI)  887  1,144 

(VIII) Other comprehensive income
A (i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 

	 (a)	 Remeasurements losses of the defined benefit plans  (35)  (53)

A (ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  9  13 

Total other comprehensive income [A (i-ii)]  (26)  (40)

(IX) Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII)  861  1,104 

Earnings per equity share (In `) 

Basic and Diluted 29  93.19  120.20 

Nominal value per share: `10 

(` in lakhs)
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Cash flow statement for the year 
ended 31st March 2025

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

A.	 Cash flow from operating activities

Profit for the year  887  1,144 

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss account  304  405 

Depreciation and amortisation of non current assets  415  506 

(Gain) / Loss on sale / write off of property, plant and equipment (net)  (1)  (2)

Interest income recognised in profit and loss  (235)  (179)

Employee stock options provisions  16  10 

Effect of unrealized exchange (Gain)/Loss  (1)  (1)

Other interest cost   20  51 

Liabilities no longer required written back  (183)  -   

Interest on other financial assets carried at amortised cost  (6)  (6)

Bad debts written off (net of expected credit loss allowance)  1  16 

Provision for warranty no longer required written back  (55)  -   

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) /decrease in trade and other receivables  (477)  (723)

(Increase) /decrease in Other Financial assets  (6)  7 

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories  (138)  52 

(Increase) /decrease in other assets  12  241 

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables  (786)  383 

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions  31  267 

Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities  (589)  (115)

Cash generated from operations  (791)  2,056 

Income taxes paid (net of refund, if any)  (526)  (505)

Net cash generated from operations  (1,317)  1,552 

B.	 Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for Property, Plant and equipment  (418)  (465)

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and equipment  4  3 

Interest received  221  179 

Net cash used in investing activities  (193)  (283)
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
In terms of our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number - FRN 117366W/W100018
Chartered Accountants 

Kedar Raje	 Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Agarwal
Partner	 Director	 Director
Membership No: 102637	 DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Place : Pune	 Place : Gurugram	 Place : Gurugram
Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025

	 CIN: U31901TN1984PLC011107	

Cash flow statement for the year 
ended 31st March 2025 (Contd.)

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

C.	 Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities  (92)  (89)

Net cash used in financing activities  (92)  (89)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  (1,602)  1,180 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  9,750  8,570 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  8,148  9,750 

Movement in cash and cash equivalents  (1,602)  1,180 

1.	 Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as specified 
in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.				 

				  
2.      Purchase of fixed assets represents additions to property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets adjusted for movement of (a) 

capital work in progress for property, plant and equipment and (b) intangible assets under development during the year.	
				  
3.     Cash and cash equivalents included in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise the following:		

Cash and cash equivalents consist of As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

As at 
31st March 2023

Bank Balances

Current Accounts  227  209  89 

Demand deposits (Original maturity less than 3 months )  7,921  9,541  8,481 

 8,148  9,750  8,570 
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A.	 Equity share capital
(` in lakhs)

Amount 

Balance as at 31st March 2023  95 

Changes in Equity share capital during the year  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2024  95 

Changes in Equity share capital during the year  -   

Balance as at 31st March 2025  95 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2025

B. Other equity (` in lakhs)

Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive 
Income

TotalCapital 
Redemption 

Reserve

Retained 
earnings

Share 
based 

payment 
reserve

 Remeasurements of 
the defined benefit 

plans

Balance as at 31st March 2023  5  10,939  12  (192)  10,764 

Profit for the year  -    1,144  -    -    1,144 

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of income tax

 -    -    -    (40)  (40)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    1,144  -    (40)  1,104 

Recognition of share-based payments  -    -    10  -    10 

Balance as at 31st March 2024  5  12,083  22  (232)  11,878 

Profit for the year  -    887  -    -    887 

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of income tax

 -    -    -    (26)  (26)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    887  -    (26)  861 

Recognition of share-based payments  -    -    16  -    16 

Balance as at 31st March 2025  5  12,970  38  (258)  12,755 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 
In terms of our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration Number - FRN 117366W/W100018
Chartered Accountants 

Kedar Raje	 Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Agarwal
Partner	 Director	 Director
Membership No: 102637	 DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

Place : Pune	 Place : Gurugram	 Place : Gurugram
Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025	 Date  : 29 August 2025
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Notes to the financial statements	

Note 1. General Information:

	 Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged primarily into manufacturing 

and trading of electrical devices and control systems viz. Switches, Sockets, Cable Management Systems, 

Lighting Management Systems and Other Wiring Devices. The Company is a public limited company (unlisted) 

incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 5th, 6th and 7th floors, North Tower, KRM 

Plaza, No.2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai, Tamil Nadu - 600031. The Company is a subsidiary of Novar 

ED&S Limited, U.K. 

	 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29th August, 2025.

	

Note 2. Material Accounting Policy Information

A. 	 Statement of Compliance	

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the 

historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured 

at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued there after.

	 Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 

adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto 

in use.

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 

cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for 

the purpose of current – non current classification of assets and liabilities.

B. 	 Basis of Preparation and Presentation	

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except 

for the following material  items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

	 i) Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair values (as required by the relevant Ind AS)

	 ii) Share based payment transactions and

	 iii) Defined benefit and other long term employee benefits

	 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods and 

services.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 

observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, 

the company takes into account the characteristics of the assets or liability if market participants would take 

those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for 

measurement and disclosure purpose in these financial statement is determined on such basis, except for 

share-based transactions that are within scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope 

of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net 

realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

Notes
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	 Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian ` in lakhs and rounded off as permitted by 

Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, except where otherwise indicated. Per share data are presented in 

Indian ` to two decimal places.

C.	 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any.

	 Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are 

stated at the lower of their net book value and net realisable value and are shown separately in the financial 

statements. Any expected loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, plant and 

equipment which are carried at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Freehold land is not depreciated.

	 The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-

line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

	 Class of Assets	 Useful Lives

	 Buildings		  7 years to 30 years

	 Plant and Machinery*	 4 years to 10 years

	 Tooling                                                        4 years

	 Office Equipment (including computer)              3 years to 6 years

	 Furniture and Fixture                                      10 years

	 * Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent 

the period over which management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are 

different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

	 Assets installed in leased premises are depreciated over lease period or useful life of assets whichever is 

lower.

	 The estimated useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year, 

with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

D. 	 Impairment Of Tangible And Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

	 Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (property, 

plant and equipment  and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest 

identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent 

of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any 

such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. 

Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. 

Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. 

Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of 

an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet 

date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting 

periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.
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E. 	 Inventories

	 Inventories comprise of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, stock in trade and are stated at lower 

of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the technique of standard cost method, which 

approximates the actual cost using the Moving Weighted Average basis. The cost of finished goods and work 

in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production 

overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

F.	 Revenue Recognition

i)	 Revenue from contract with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are 

transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration Company expects to be entitled 

in exchange for those goods or services. 

ii)	 The terms of a contract or the historical business practice can give rise to variable consideration 

due to, but not limited to, cash-based incentives, rebates, performance awards, or credits. Variable 

consideration is estimated at the most likely amount receivable from customers. Estimated amounts 

are included in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative 

revenue recognized for such transaction will not occur, or when the uncertainty associated with the 

variable consideration is resolved. Estimates of variable consideration and determination of whether to 

include estimated amounts in the transaction price are based largely on an assessment of our anticipated 

performance and all information (historical, current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

G. 	 Foreign Currency Transactions

i)	 Functional currency

	 The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented 

in Indian ` (rounded off to Lakhs).

ii) 	 Initial Recognition

	 On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency 

amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 

transaction.

iii) 	 Subsequent Recognition

	 As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in 

a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary 

items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are 

reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

	 All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. 

Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss.

H.	 Employee Benefits	

	 The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as 

either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans:

Notes
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	 Defined contribution plans : 

i)	 Superannuation fund: 

	 This is a defined contribution plan. The Company makes contribution as per the scheme to superannuation 

fund administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company has no further obligation of 

future superannuation benefits other than its annual contributions and recognises such contributions as 

expense as and when due.

ii)	 Provident Fund: 

	 Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the 

Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as 

the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly 

basis. The Company recognises such contribution as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plans:

i)	 Gratuity: 

	 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible 

employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump 

sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of 

an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s 

liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each financial 

reporting period. 

ii) 	 Compensated Absences: 

	 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months 

from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same 

is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount 

expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

iii)	 Termination Benefits: 

	 Termination benefits in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits are recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss as and when incurred.

	 Actuarial gain or losses and remeasurements:-

	 Actuarial gains or losses on defined benefit obligations are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest 

recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined 

benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above 

or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset 

through other comprehensive income.

	 Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts 

included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to statement of profit and 

loss in subsequent periods.

I.	 Share based payments	

	 Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of equity settled instruments given by the 

ultimate holding company (Honeywell International Inc.), for rendering services over a defined vesting period. 

Equity instruments granted are measured by reference to the fair value of the instrument at the date of grant. 
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The expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase to the share 

based payment reserve, as a component of equity. The equity instruments generally vest in a graded manner 

over the vesting period. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over the vesting period of the 

respective tranches of such grants. The stock compensation expense is determined based on the Company’s 

estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest.

J.	 Income Tax	

	 Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the 

net profit or loss for the period, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in 

which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income. 

i)	 Current tax:-

	 Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the 

taxation laws prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

	 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off 

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

ii)	 Deferred tax:-

	 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.

	 Deferred tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 

against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 

reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 

off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred 

tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.

K.	 Provisions and Contingencies	

	 Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the 

best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are 

discounted to its present value as appropriate.

	 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company 

from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of 

fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

	 Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence 
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of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is 

either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount 

cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability.

	 Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

	 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Where the 	

unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to 

be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a 

provision.

L.	 Leases	

	 At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. The 

assessment is based on:

(1)	 whether the contract involves the use of a distinct identified asset, 

(2)	 whether the Company obtains the right to substantially all the economic benefit from the use of the 

asset throughout the period, and

(3)	 whether the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

	 The Company has hired office premises under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements at stipulated 

rentals.

	 Right-of-use assets represent right to use an underlying asset during the reasonably certain lease term, and 

lease liabilities represent obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. The lease terms include 

options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that 

option.

	 The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date of the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 

amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 

made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect 

revised in-substance lease payments.

	 The right-of-use  assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 

adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct 

costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. 

	 The Company primarily uses incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at the 

lease commencement date, in determining the present value of the lease payments.

	 A right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability are not recorded for leases with an initial term of 12 

months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the 

Company recognizes lease payments as operating expense as incurred over the lease term.

	 The Company has also elected practical expedient available within the standard:

• 	 not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and instead account for each lease 

component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

• 	 using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate 

the lease.
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M.	 Financial Instruments	

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets 

and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of 

the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 

recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the 

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs 

to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 

can access at the measurement date;

	 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly;

	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

N.	 Financial assets 

	 All purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis including 

delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

	 All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirely at either amortised cost or fair 

value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

1.	 Classification of financial assets

	 All financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost except derivative financial instruments.

2. 	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets 

measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, other contractual right to receive cash or other financial 

asset.

	 Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 

occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due 

to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects 

to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-Adjusted effective interest rate 

for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The company estimates cash flows by 

considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 

and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

	 The company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime 

expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since 

initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal 

to 12 month expected credit losses. 12 month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time 

expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within 
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the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 

12 months.

	 If the company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss 

model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not 

increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the 

previous period, the company again measures the loss allowance based on 12 month expected credit 

losses.

	 When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 

recognition, the company uses the change in the risk of a default accruing over the expected life of 

the  financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that 

assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at 

the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial 

recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost 

or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

	 For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financials asset that result from 

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance 

at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

	 Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, 

the company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss 

allowance is computed based on judgement considering past experience. 

	 The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally 

applied to other financial assets.

3. 	 Derecognition of financial assets

	 The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset 

expired or when it transfer the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred assets the Company recognises its 

retained interest in the asset and then associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

	 On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 

and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if 

such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial 

assets.

	 On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Company allocates the previous 

carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing 

involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of relative fair values of those part 

on the date of the transfer. The difference between carrying amount allocated to the part that is no 

longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and 

any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is 

recognised in profit and loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit and 

loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in other 

comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that 

is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair value of those parts.
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O.	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1.	 Classification as debt or equity

	 Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as 

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of financial 

liability and equity instrument. 

2.	 Equity instruments

	 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 

received, net of direct issue cost. 

3. 	 Financial liabilities

	 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method of 

FVTPL. 

3.1	 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

	 Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or 

designated as at FVTPL.

	 Financial liability at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 

recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any 

interest paid on the financial liability and is included in ‘Other Income’.

3.2	 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

	 Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured 

at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amount of financial 

liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective 

interest method. Interest expenses that is not capitalised as part of cost of an asset is included in 

the ‘finance cost’ line item. 

	 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability 

and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial 

liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

3.3	 Foreign exchange gains and losses

	 For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised 

cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined 

based on the amortised cost of the instrument and are recognised in other income. 

	 The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in foreign currency is determined in that foreign 

currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liability 

that are measured at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of fair value gains or 

losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

3.4	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 The Company derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the Company obligations are 

discharged, cancelled and have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instrument 

is substantially different term is accounted for as and extinguishment of the original financial 

liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of a 
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term of existing financial liability is accounted for as and extinguishment of the original financial 

liability and recognition of new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of 

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit 

or loss. 

P. 	 New Accounting Standards, Amendments to Existing Standards, Annual Improvements and Interpretations 
applicable to the Company effective subsequent to March 31, 2025

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 

2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the 

Company.

	

Note 3. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

	 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 

estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application 

of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets 

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 

the year. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex 

and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed 

appropriately. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from 

those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Appropriate 

changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding 

the estimates. Changes in estimates and judgements are reflected in the financial statements in the period in 

which changes are made.

	 The Company uses the following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparation of 

its financial statements:

1.	 The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and 

the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company 

estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, 

customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial 

condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required. 

2.	 In case of Property, plant and equipment, the charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after 

determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end 

of its life. The useful lives and residual values of company’s assets are determined by management at 

the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives 

are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may 

impact their life, such as changes in technology.

3.	 Ind AS 116 requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease 

adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably 

certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis 

and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the 

contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any 

significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, cost relating to the termination of 

Notes
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the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the Company’s operations taking into account 

the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future 

periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After 

considering current and future economic conditions, the company has concluded that no material 

changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts. Refer note no 2 (L).

4.	 The cost of defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of defined benefit 

obligations based on current actuarial valuations using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial 

valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 

These include the determination of discount rate, salary increment and mortality rates. Due to complexities 

involved in the valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in 

these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Notes
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Note 4 - Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in-progress (` in lakhs)

Particulars / Class of Assets As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Carrying amounts of :
Buildings  25  30 

Plant and machinery  247  236 

Tooling  575  418 

Office Equipments (Including Computers)  105  126 

Furniture and fixtures  13  16 
 965  826 

Capital work-in-progress (Refer note 41)  -    -   
 965  826 

(` in lakhs)

Buildings Plant and 
machinery Tooling

Office 
Equipments 
(Including 

Computers)

Furniture 
and 

fixtures
Total

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at March 31, 2023  50  902  2,207  361  145  3,665 
Additions  -    129  85  80  -    294 

Disposals/ assets written off  -    (4)  (4)  (4)  -    (12)
Balance at March 31, 2024  50  1,027  2,288  437  145  3,947 
Additions  -    58  384  41  -    483 

Disposals/ assets written off  -    (22)  (59)  (17)  -    (98)
Balance at March 31, 2025  50  1,063  2,613  461  145  4,332 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (if any)
Balance at March 31, 2023  15  732  1,579  253  123  2,702 
Eliminated on disposal/ assets written off  -    (4)  (4)  (3)  -    (11)

Depreciation expenses  5  63  295  61  6  430 
Balance at March 31, 2024  20  791  1,870  311  129  3,121 
Eliminated on disposal/ assets written off  -    (22)  (57)  (16)  -    (95)

Depreciation expenses  5  47  225  61  3  341 
Balance at March 31, 2025  25  816  2,038  356  132  3,367 

Carrying Amount
Balance at March 31, 2024  30  236  418  126  16  826 
Balance at March 31, 2025  25  247  575  105  13  965 

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024, there is no movement in property, plant and equipment 
on account of revaluation, business combination, impairment.  

The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of 
Profit and Loss.

Notes

Notes to the financial statements



Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited
Annual Report 2024-25

53

Notes

Notes to the financial statements

Note 5 - Trade receivables (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Current

Undisputed trade receivables

(a) Secured, considered good  -    -   

(b) Unsecured, considered good  5,108  4,631 

 Less: Expected credit loss allowance for doubtful trade receivables  (143)  (142)

 4,965  4,489 

(c) Unsecured, considered credit impaired  -    -   

Less: Expected credit loss allowance for doubtful trade receivables  -    -   

 -    -   

Total  4,965  4,489 

Also, refer note 19.1(B), note 27 for related party balances and note 36-B for ageing.
				  
The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables 
based on a provision matrix. This provision matrix is based on judgement considering past experience. The provision 
matrix at the end of reporting period is as follows:								      

Expected credit loss %
Ageing 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
0-90 days past due 1.00% 0.04%

More than 90 days past due 40.49% 48.37%

Age of trade receivables (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

0-90 days past due  4,765  4,340 

More than 90 days past due  343  291 

Total  5,108  4,631 

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Balance at beginning of the year  142  126 

Add: Expected credit loss during the year  47  76 

Less: Amounts recovered / reversed in the current year  (46)  (60)

Balance at the end of the year  143  142 
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The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large.			 

The Company determines the allowance for expected credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted 

to reflect current and estimated future economic conditions. In calculating the expected credit loss, the Company 

has also considered the likelyhood of increased credit risk and consequential default. The Company has specifically 

evaluated the potential impact with respect to customers which could have an immediate impact and the rest which 

could have an impact with expected delays. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful trade receivables as 

at March 31, 2025 is considered adequate. 	

The Composition of trade receivables representing more than 5% of trade receivables are as under:

(` in lakhs)

As at Number of 
customers

Outstanding 
balance 

31st March 2025 None -

31st March 2024 1 238

Note 6 - Cash and cash equivalents (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Bank balances
In current accounts  227  209 

Demand deposits (Original maturity less than 3 months)  7,921  9,541 

Total  8,148  9,750 

There are no repatriation restrictions with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period 
and prior periods. 				  

The deposits maintained by the Company with banks and financial institutions comprise time deposits, which can be 
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.			 
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Note 7 -Other financial assets (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2024

As at
31st March 2023

Non-Current
Unsecured security deposits [net of expected credit loss allowance   
` 10 lakhs, (31st March 2024: ` 9 lakhs)]

 103  91 

Total  103  91 

Current
Interest accrued on deposits with banks  14  -   
Total  14  -   

Note 8 -  Income tax assets and Income tax liabilities (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Income tax assets [Net of Provision for tax ` 296 lakhs;  
(31st March 2024 ` 834 lakhs)]

 367  145 

 367  145 

Income tax liabilities [Net of Advance Tax for tax `  Nil lakhs;  
(31st March 2024 ` 445 lakhs)]

 -    25 

 -    25 

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:                    (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Profit before tax  1,191  1,549 

Tax expenses  304  405 

Effective tax rate 25.53% 26.14%

Net impact of deduction/exemption and disallowance -0.36% -0.26%

Additional tax provision for earlier years 0.00% -0.71%

Applicable Tax rate as per Income Tax Act 25.17% 25.17%
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Note 9 - Deferred tax asset (net) (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Deferred tax liability (A)  -    -   

Deferred tax assets (B)  547  563 

Deferred tax assets (Net) (B-A)  547  563 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing taxation laws.

2024-25

Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
the Statement 
of Profit and 

Loss

 Recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

 Closing 
balance 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to 
Expected Credit Loss on trade and other 
receivables

 36  (1)  -    35 

Depreciation and amortisation  177  6  -    183 

Provision for Indirect Tax Matter  225  (29)  -    196 

Provision for Gratuity  40  (10)  9  39 

Provision for Bonus  41  4  -    45 

Others  44  5  -    49 

Total  563  (25)  9  547 

2023-24

Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
the Statement 
of Profit and 

Loss

 Recognised in other 
comprehensive income 

 Closing 
balance 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to 
Expected Credit Loss on trade and other 
receivables

 32  4  -    36 

Depreciation and amortisation  145  32  -    177 

Provision for Indirect Tax Matter  177  48  -    225 

Provision for Gratuity  50  (23)  13  40 

Provision for Bonus  52  (11)  -    41 

Others  17  27  -    44 

Total  473  77  13  563 
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Note 10 - Other assets (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Non-current

Capital advances  124  196 

Balances with Government authorities  
(including payments made under protest)

 411  396 

Total  535  592 

Current

Balances with Government authorities (including GST, Customs)  13  108 

Advances recoverable in cash or kind  120  44 

Advances to employees  -    6 

Prepaid expenses  10  12 

Total  143  170 

Note 11 - Inventories (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)

Raw materials [includes in transit: `124 lakhs  
(31st March 2024 : `136 lakhs]

 566  539 

Work-in progress  119  103 

Finished goods  275  288 

Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading)  
[includes in transit: ` 23 lakhs (31st March 2024 : ` 21  lakhs)]

 1,101  993 

Total     2,061  1,923 

The mode of valuation of Inventories is stated in note 2(E)	

Refer note 27 for related party balances.		

The amount of inventories recognised as an expense ` 8,450 lakhs (31st March 2024 : ` 8,592 lakhs).

During the year ` 82 lakhs (31st March 2024 : ` 245 lakhs) (net) was recognised as write down of inventory.	

Notes

Notes to the financial statements
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Note 12 - Equity share capital (` in lakhs)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

Authorised:
2,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 2,000,000) equity shares of `10 each  200  200 

 200  200 
Issued:
951,640 (March 31, 2024: 951,640) equity shares of `10 each  95  95 

 95  95 
Subscribed and paid up:

951,640 (March 31, 2024: 951,640) equity shares of ` 10 each (fully paid up)  95  95 

Total  95  95 

(a)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the shares
	 Equity shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of `10 per share. Each 

shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend, if any proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 
dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(b)	 Reconciliation of shares:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of 

shares (` in lakhs) Number of 
shares (` in lakhs)

Equity shares
Balance as at the beginning and end of the year 9,51,640 95 9,51,640 95

(c)   Shares held by the holding company (Promoters)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of 

shares (` in lakhs) Number of 
shares (` in lakhs)

Equity shares:
Novar ED&S Limited, U.K. (Holding company) 8,69,100 87 8,69,100 87

There are no changes in promoter’s shareholding during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024	
		

(d)   Number of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Number of 
shares Percentage Number of 

shares Percentage

Novar ED&S Limited, U.K. (Holding company) 8,69,100 91% 8,69,100 91%
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e)     The Company has neither allotted any shares as fully paid up bonus shares nor pursuant to contract(s) payment 
being received in cash during 5 years immediately preceding March 31, 2025.			 

Note 13 - Other equity (` in lakhs)

As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Capital Redemption Reserve (A)  5  5 

Share based payment reserve (B)  38  22 

Other comprehensive Income (C)
 Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net)  (258)  (232)

Retained Earnings (D) 12,970  12,083 

Total (A+B+C+D)  12,755  11,878 

Note 14 - Provisions (` in lakhs)

As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Non Current
Gratuity (refer note 34)  80  65 

Provision for Warranty (refer note 33)  35  115 

Total  115  180 
Current
Compensated absences  118  99 

Gratuity (refer note 34)  76  93 

Provision for Warranty and other potential claims (refer note 33)  55  50 

Provision for litigations/ disputes (refer note 33)  780  894 

Total  1,029  1,136 

Note 15 - Lease liabilities (` in lakhs)

As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Non Current

Lease liabilities (refer note 2 (L) and note 28)  64  152 

Total  64  152 
Current 

Current maturities of lease liabilities (refer note 2 (L) and note 28)  88  79 

Total  88  79 
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Note 16 - Trade payables (` in lakhs)

As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Current 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  385  336 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 2,261  3,093 

Total  2,646  3,429 

* Refer note 36-B for ageing schedule from due date of payment and note 42 for struck off companies.  Refer note 

27 for related party transactions.

Note 17 - Other financial liabilities (` in lakhs)

As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Current 

Creditors for capital goods  10  17 

Provision for expenses  576  789 

 586  806 

Note 18 - Other current liabilities (` in lakhs)

As at 
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

Advances from customers  81  23 

Statutory dues (including Provident Fund and Tax deducted at Source)     80  207 

Provision for Discount  436  740 

 597  970 

Notes

Notes to the financial statements
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Note 19 - Revenue from operations (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers (refer note 19.1)
Manufactured products  8,377  7,260 

Traded products  7,349  8,484 

Other operating revenue

Scrap sale  25  23 

Total  15,751  15,767 

Note 19.1 - Revenue from contracts with customers (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

A. Disaggregation of revenue

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

     Point in time  15,726  15,744 

     Over time  -    -   

(b) Geographical location

     India  15,565  15,733 

     Others  161  11 

(c) Type of contract

     Fixed price  15,726  15,744 

     Time and material  -    -   

B. Contract balances

Progress on satisfying performance obligations under contracts with customers and the related billings and cash 

collections are recorded in accounts receivable. The customer advances are recorded as Other Current Liabilities. 

When contracts are modified to account for changes in contract specifications and requirements, the Company 

considers whether the modification either creates new or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. 

Contract modifications that are for goods or services that are not distinct from the existing contract, due to the 

significant integration with the original good or service provided, are accounted for as if they were part of that 

existing contract. The effect of a contract modification on the transaction price and the measure of progress for 

the performance obligation to which it relates, is recognized as an adjustment to revenue (either as an increase in 

or a reduction of revenue) on a cumulative catch-up basis. When the modifications include additional performance 

obligations that are distinct, they are accounted for as a new contract and performance obligation, which are 

recognized prospectively.
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(` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

(a)	 Opening balances

	 Contract receivables (net of expected credit loss allowance)
 4,489  3,782 

Closing balances

Contract receivables (net of expected credit loss allowance)
 4,965  4,489 

(b) Revenue recognised from opening balance of contract liability  -    -   

C. Performance obligation				  

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer. A 

contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, 

or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. Performance obligations are satisfied as of a point in time or over 

time. Performance obligations are supported by contracts with customers, providing a framework for the nature of 

the distinct goods, services or bundle of goods and services. The timing of satisfying the performance obligation is 

typically indicated by the terms of the contract.

For some contracts the Company may be entitled to receive an advance payment. The Company provides standard 

warranty on its products and records obligation on the same based on past trend. 

D. Transaction price (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Amount of transaction price allocated to performance 
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied)

 -    -   

The Company has applied the practical expedient to exclude the value of remaining performance obligations for 

contracts with an original expected term of one year or less. Performance obligations recognized as at the year 

end will be satisfied over the course of future periods. The disclosure of the timing for satisfying the performance 

obligation is based on the requirements of contracts with customers. Remaining performance obligation estimates 

are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts 

and periodic revalidations.

Note 20 - Other Income (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as a 
fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss 

i)  Bank Deposits  235  179 

ii) Other financial assets carried at amortised cost  6  6 

Interest on Income tax refund  -    7 

Liabilities no longer required written back  183  -   

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net)  1  2 

Miscellaneous income  32  9 

Provision for warranty no longer required written back  (refer note 33)  55  -   

Total  512  203 

Notes

Notes to the financial statements
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Note 21 - Cost of materials consumed (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Raw materials consumed

Opening inventory  539  414 

Add: Purchases  3,783  2,908 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year  566  539 

Total  3,756  2,783 

Note 22 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade
(` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

(Increase)/ decrease in stock

Stock at the beginning of the year

Finished goods  288  567 

Work in progress  103  142 

Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading)  993  852 

Total (A)  1,384  1,561 

Stock at the end of the year

Finished goods  275  288 

Work in progress  119  103 

Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading)  1,101  993 

Total (B)  1,495  1,384 

(Increase)/ decrease in stock (A-B)  (111)  177 

Note 23 - Employee benefit expenses (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus  2,951  2,517 

Share based payment (Refer note 31)  16  10 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (refer note 34)  186  163 

Staff welfare expenses  91  71 

Total  3,244  2,761 
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Note 24 - Finance cost (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Interest cost on lease liabilities (Refer note 28)  13  18 

Interest payable to MSME (Refer note 30)  4  4 

Other interest cost   3  29 

Total  20  51 

Note 25 - Other expenses (` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Power and fuel  96  93 

Rent [(refer note 2 (L), 27 and 28]  134  128 

Rates and taxes  77  218 

Repairs and maintenance     

Plant and machinery  70  43 

Others  9  19 

 79  62 

Auditors remuneration

As Statutory auditors  15  15 

Other (including Tax Audit)  2  2 

 17  17 

Packing, Freight and Forwarding  574  415 

Stores and Spares Consumed  36  50 

Travelling and conveyance  324  301 

Warranty expenses (refer note 33)  -    112 

Communication expenses  13  12 

Insurance  29  29 

Professional fees  493  257 

Foreign exchange loss (net)  19  1 

Bad debts written off (net of expected credit loss allowance) (refer note 
25.1)

 47  76 

Customer deductions/claims  -    9 

Corporate overhead allocations (refer note 27)  582  330 

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 37 and 27)  29  12 

Bank Charges  25  3 

Advertisement and Sales Promotion  268  246 

Miscellaneous expenses  101  140 

Total  2,943  2,511 
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Note 25.1 - Bad debts written off (net of expected credit loss allowance) (` in lakhs))

Year ended
31st March 2025

Year ended
31st March 2024

Bad debts written off  46  60 

Expected credit loss allowance  1  16 

Bad debts written off (net of expected credit loss allowance)  47  76 

Note 26 - Segment information	 									       
	 Information reported to the Chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purposes of resource allocation 

and assessment of segment performance focuses only on one business segment i.e.Manufacture and Trading 

in Electrical and Electronic devices . There are no other reportable segments.

	 Geographical Information:

	 The Company operates in two principal geographical areas, viz. India and Others. Revenue by location of 

operations and information about its non- current assets is given below:	

(` in lakhs)

Revenue  for the year ended Non current assets as at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

India 15,590 15,756  1,092 1,027

Other  161 11  -    -   

Total 15,751 15,767  1,092 1,027

		  *  Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-Of-Use Assets, Capital work in progress and Intangible assets used in the 

Company’s business have not been identified to “India” or “Other”, as they are used interchangeably.	
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Note 27 - Related Party Disclosure :
List of related parties (as identified and certified by the Management)

i) Parties where control exists

Novar ED&S Limited, UK , Holding company

Honeywell International Inc., Ultimate holding company

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

ii) Fellow Subsidiaries

Honeywell Middle East FZE

Honeywell Pte. Ltd.

Honeywell Technology Solutions Lab Private Limited

Honeywell Automation India Limited

Honeywell International India Private Limited 

Honeywell Hometown Solutions India Foundation

Honeywell (China) Co., Ltd.

MK Electric (Malaysia) SDN BHD

Honeywell Environmental & Combustion Controls (Tianjin) Co. Ltd

MK Electric (Singapore) Pte Ltd

Honeywell Automation and Control Products Limited

Honeywell International Philippines Inc.

iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Non Executive Directors

Satish Kumar Agarwal

Nagendranath Shankarappa

Non Executive Independent Directors

Mr. Virender Shankar

Mr. Inder Jeet Singh (Effective till 29th March 2025)

The Company’s material related party transactions during the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 
and outstanding balances as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 with whom the Company generally enters into 
transactions which are at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business.
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Transactions with Related Parties (` in lakhs)

Description of the nature of transactions

Volume of  
transactions for 

year ended
Amount outstanding as at

31st 
March 
2025

31st 
March 
2024

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Receiv-
able

Payable / 
Provision

Receiv-
able

Payable / 
Provision

Sale of goods, services, assets and 
reimbursement of expenses
Ultimate Holding Company

Honeywell International Inc.  28  19  8  -    4  -   

Total  28  19  8  -    4  -   

Fellow Subsidiaries

Novar ED&S Limited, UK  114  30  56  -    15  -   

Honeywell Middle East FZE  6  1  1  -    0  -   

Honeywell Environmental & Combustion Controls 

(Tianjin) Co., Ltd.
 -    -    -    -    1  -   

MK Electric (Singapore) Pte Ltd  1  1  -    -    1  -   

Honeywell International India Private Limited  -    2  -    -    3  -   

Honeywell Automation and Control Products Limited  4  6  -    -    6  -   

Total  125  40  57  -    26  -   
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Transactions with Related Parties (` in lakhs)

Description of the nature of transactions

Volume of  
transactions for 

year ended
Amount outstanding as at

31st 
March 
2025

31st 
March 
2024

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Receiv-
able

Payable / 
Provision

Receiv-
able

Payable / 
Provision

Purchase of goods, services and assets  
(including GIT)
Ultimate Holding Company

Honeywell International Inc.  399  136  -    175  -    136 

Total  399  136  -    175  -    136 

Fellow Subsidiaries

Honeywell International India Private Limited  109  76  -    51  -    30 

Honeywell Automation India Limited  52  45  -    19  -    28 

Honeywell Environmental & Combustion Controls 
(Tianjin) Co. Ltd

 -    26  -    -    -    2 

MK Electric (Malaysia) SDN BHD  90  80  -    9  -    9 

Novar ED&S Limited, UK  391  401  -    -    -    124 

Honeywell Technology Solutions Lab Private Limited  50  42  -    15  -    11 

Honeywell (China) Co Ltd  39  44  -    9  -    10 

Honeywell Pte Ltd  8  -    -    -    -    1 

Honeywell International Philippines Inc.  -    8  -    -    -    2 

Total  739  722  -    103  -    217 

Rent Paid

Honeywell Automation India Limited  76  91  -    -    -    -   

Honeywell International India Private Limited  24  37  -    -    -    -   

Total  100  128  -    -    -    -   

Expenditure towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility
Fellow Subsidiaries

Honeywell Hometown Solution India Foundation  29  12  -    -    -    -   

Total  29  12  -    -    -    -   
Remuneration to Independent Directors

Sitting Fees  6  7  -    -    -    -   

Total  6  7  -    -    -    -   
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Note 28 - Lease :

The Company has entered into leases for office premise. These lease arrangements range for a period of 120 

months. 								      

(` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Building Building
Balance as at the beginning of the year  201  277 

Additions  -    -   

Adjustment  -    -   

Depreciation  (74)  (76)

Balance as at the end of the year  127  201 

Following are the changes in carrying value of lease liabilities during the year ended:

(` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Balance as at the beginning of the year  231  302 

Interest cost accrued during the year  13  18 

Payments  (92)  (89)

Balance as at the end of the year  152  231 

(` in lakhs)

Year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets   134    128  

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

As a lessee under operating leases 							                           (` in lakhs)

2025-26  95 

2026-27  66 

Total lease payments  161 

Less: Interest  9 

Total  152 

The leases that the Company has entered with lessors towards office premises are long term in nature.
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Note 29 - Earning per share (EPS):

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the average number of shares 

outstanding during the year. The basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated as under:	

For the year ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Profit after tax (` in lakhs)  887  1,144 

Weighted average number of equity shares  9,51,640  9,51,640 

Basic/ Diluted earnings per share (`)  93.19  120.20 

Face value per share (`) 10 10 
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Note 30 - Disclosure in accordance with Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006

(` in lakhs)

Sr No Particulars 31st March 
2025

31st March 
2024

i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 

supplier as at the end of the accounting period

- Principal amount outstanding  385  336 

- Interest thereon  4  4 

ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with 

the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 

day during each accounting period

 -    -   

- Interest paid in terms of Section 16  -    -   

- Delayed principal payments  224  305 

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 

year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

- Normal Interest accrued during the year, for all the delayed payments, 

as per the agreed terms and not as payable under the Act

 -    -   

- Normal Interest payable during the year, for the period of delay in making 

payment, as per the agreed terms and not as payable under the Act.

 -    -   

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 

accounting period

- Total interest accrued during the period  4  4 

-Total Interest remaining unpaid out of the above as at the balance sheet 

date

 4  4 

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 

actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 

deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Outstanding interest at the end of current year  23  19 

Outstanding interest at the end of previous year  19  15 

The Company has compiled this information based on intimations received from suppliers of their status as Micro or 

Small enterprises and / or its registration with the appropriate authority under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (as amended from time to time).
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Note 31 - Share Based Payments 

Employee share option plan of the company

Honeywell International Inc. (HII), the ultimate holding company, may grant stock options and restricted stock awards 

to certain employees under its stock incentive plan.

Restricted Stock Units—Restricted stock unit (RSU) awards entitle the holder to receive one share of common stock 

for each unit when the units vest. RSUs are issued to certain employees as compensation at fair market value at the 

date of grant. RSUs typically become fully vested over periods ranging from three to seven years and are payable in 

Honeywell common stock upon vesting.					   

Fair value of share options granted in the year						    

The fair value of each stock option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 

model. Expected volatility is based on implied volatilities from traded options on common stock of HII and historical 

volatility of common stock of HII. Monte Carlo simulation model is used to derive an expected term which represents 

an estimate of the time options are expected to remain outstanding. Such model uses historical data to estimate 

option exercise activity and post-vest termination behaviour. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life 

of the option is based on the U.S. treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date of the Stock options were as follows.

Grant Date Mar-25 Mar-24

Exercise price (USD) 213.55  197.51 

*Exercise price in equivalent INR  18,303  16,455 

Expected volatility 23.24% 21.41%

Option life  4.92  4.87 

Dividend yield 2.51% 2.60%

Risk-free interest rate 3.89% 4.08%

Fair value per share $43.67 $37.35

Fair value per share in equivalent INR*  3,743  3,112 

* Converted at ` 85.70 / USD
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The following share-based payment arrangements were in existence during the current and previous year :

A) Restricted stock option

Equivalent fair value INR* Number

Options series Grant date Fair value at 
grant date

31st March 
2025

31st March 
2024

31st March 
2025

31st March 
2024

2016 RSU 29-Jul-21 219.49  18,810  18,286  67  133 

2016 RSU 1-Aug-24 193.11  16,550  -  328  -   

Total  395  133 

* Converted at ` 85.70 / USD (March 31, 2024 - ` 83.31 / USD)

Movements in Restricted Stock Units during the year Restricted Stock Units

2024-25 2023-24

No of Units No of Units

Balance at beginning of year  133  198 

Adjustments during the year  -    -   

Granted during the year  328  -   

Forfeited during the year  -    -   

Vested and issued during the year  66  65 

Expired during the year  -    -   

Balance at end of year  395  133 

Note 32 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments	

A)	 Contingent liabilities									                    (` in lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Sales tax liability that may arise in respect of matters in appeal  66  23 

b) Income Tax matters that may arise in respect of matters in appeal  272  272 

Note: 

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflow, if any, in respect of the above 

pending resolutions of the respective proceedings. 

	 Contingent liability majorly represent demands arising on completion of assessment proceedings under the 

Income-tax Act, 1961 and other indirect tax act including excise, custom and sales tax. 

	 These claims are on account of various issues of disallowances, or addition in liability by tax liabilities related 

to various issues including C- forms, WCT TDS etc. 

	 These matters are pending before various appellate authorities and the Management including its tax advisors 

expect that its position will likely be upheld on ultimate resolution and will not have a material adverse effect 

on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.				  
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B.	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for (net of 

advances) - ` 148 lakhs (31st March 2024 ` 259 lakhs)

Note 33 - Disclosure as required by IND AS -37 									       
             (` in lakhs)

Year ended  
31st March

Opening 
balance

Additions Utilizations Reversals Total

Provision for litigations/ disputes (A)
2025  894  69  -    (183)  780 

2024  702  358  (76)  (90)  894 

Provision for warranty (B)
2025  165  -    (20)  (55)  90 

2024  96  112  (43)  -    165 

A	 Litigations/ disputes mainly include:

a)	 Provision for disputed statutory matters comprises matters under litigation with Sales Tax and Local 

authorities.	

b)	 The amount of provision made by the Company is based on the estimate made by the Management 

considering the facts and circumstances of each case.

	 To the extent the Company is confident that it may have a strong case that portion is disclosed under 

contingent liabilities.

c)	 The timing and the amount of cash flows that will arise from these matters will be determined when the 

matters are settled with respective Appellate Authorities.

B	 Warranty														           

Provision for warranty is considered based on the rolling average warranty expense incurred in the preceding 

12 months, the warranty period for which ranges from 12  months to 24  months as per provisions of the 

contracts. Product warranty is generally extended for a period of one year to five years from the date of sale 

to the end customer. Timing of outflow is over the period of warranty.

				  

Note 34 - Employee Benefit plans

A	 Defined contribution plans

	 The company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

	  (` in lakhs)

Sr no Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

1 Contribution to employees' superannuation fund  5  5 

2 Provident fund paid to authorities  125  112 

Total  130  117 

	 Superannuation Fund: The Company contributes a sum equivalent to 10% of eligible employees salary for 

certain employees to a Superannuation Fund administered and managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India 

(LIC).The Company has no liability for future Superannuation Fund benefits other than its annual contribution 

and recognises such contributions as an expense in the year incurred.
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	 Provident Fund: Provident fund for all eligible employees are remitted to the Regional Provident Fund 

Commissioner towards Employee’s Provident Fund and Employee’s Family Pension Fund on monthly basis 

based on the statutory provisions as per the Employee Provident Fund Scheme and are charged to Statement 

of Profit and Loss. The Company has no further obligation in this regard.

B	 Defined benefit plans (Gratuity)

	 The Company also provides for gratuity, covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of 

Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 

incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the 

tenure of employment. 			 

	 The Principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Sr. No. Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1 Discount rate 6.45% 6.95%

2 Salary escalation rate 8.50% 8.50%

3 Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) Ultimate IALM (2012-14) Ultimate

4 Withdrawal rate

Age Based:  

Upto 30 years - 11%  

31 to 45 years - 12%  

Above 45 years - 5%

Age Based:  

Upto 30 years - 11%  

31 to 45 years - 12%  

Above 45 years - 5%

5 Retirement age 58 years 58 years

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors.

Total expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss  	 (` in lakhs)

Sr  
No. Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 

2025
31st March 

2024
1 Current service cost  47  43 

2 Past service cost  -    -   

3 Net Interest cost  9  7 

Component of defined benefit costs recognised in profit and loss  56  50 

4 Remeasurement of defined benefit liability  -    -   

5 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
expenses)

 -    -   

6 
Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions

 -    (7)

7 Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumptions  19  8 

8 Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in experience adjustments  20  52 

9 Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate  (4)  0 

10 Adjustments for restriction on defined benefit asset  -    -   
Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income  35  53 

TOTAL  91  103 



Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited
Annual Report 2024-25

76

Notes

Notes to the financial statements

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in ‘Employee benefits expense’ 
in the statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows.

(` in lakhs)

Sr.
No. Particulars

For the year ended

31st March 
2025

31st March 
2024

1 Present value of obligation as at beginning of the year  433  370 

2 Current service cost  47  43 

3 Interest cost  28  26 

4 Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions  -    (7)

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in financial assumptions  19  8 

Actuarial (gain)/ losses arising from changes in experience adjustments  20  52 

5 Curtailment cost/(credit)  -    -   

6 Settlement cost/(credit)  -    -   

7 Benefits paid  (21)  (41)

8 Acquisition/ Divestiture  5  (18)

9 Present value of obligation as at end of the year  531  433 

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows.

(` in lakhs)

Sr.
No. Particulars

For the year ended

31st March 
2025

31st March 
2024

1 Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year  275  260 

2 Remeasurement gain/(loss)  4  (0)

3 Expected return on plan assets  17  19 

4 Employers' contribution  95  55 

5 Benefits payment from plan asset  (21)  (41)

6 Acquisition/ Divestiture (related to transfer of employees)  5  (18)

7 Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year  375  275 
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Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet (for gratuity) including a reconciliation of the present value of defined 

benefit obligation and the fair value of assets.

(` in lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

1 Present value of funded obligation  531  433 

2 Fair value of plan assets  375  275 

3 Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet  156  158 

C.	 Other long term benefit - Compensated absences as at year end amounts to Rs. 118 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 

Rs. 99 lakhs)

	 Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the 

outcome of the Present value of obligation (PVO) and aids in understanding the uncertainty of reported 

amounts.

1- 	 Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumptions viz. Discount rate and Salary escalation 

rate as of the end of the reporting period, showing how the defined benefit obligation would have been 

affected by changes  is called out in the table above.

2-	 The assumptions  used in preparing the sensitivity analysis is Discount rate at +100bps and – 100 bps 

Salary escalation rate at +100 bps and -100 bps

3- 	 The method used to calculate the liability in these  scenarios is by keeping all the other  parameters and 

the data same as in the base liability calculation except for the parameters to be stressed. 

4- 	 There is no change in the method from the previous period and the points/percentage by which the 

assumptions are stressed are same as that in the previous year.						    

									       

Impact of change in discount rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point

(` in lakhs)

Discount rate
March 31, 2025 

Present value of 
Obligation

March 31, 2024 
Present value of 

Obligation

a) Discount rate -100 basis point  573  466 

b) Discount rate +100 basis point  496  404 
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Impact of change in salary increase rate when base assumption is decreased/increased by 100 basis point
(` in lakhs)

Salary escalation rate	
March 31, 2025 

Present value of 
Obligation

March 31, 2024 
Present value of 

Obligation

a) Salary escalation rate -100 basis point  494  402 

b) Discount rate +100 basis point  575  468 

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been 

calculated using Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that 

applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Balance sheet.

Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets

Sr. No. Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

1 Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

Gratuity fund contributions are made to LIC.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of 
return expected on investments of the Fund during the estimated term of the obligations.

The actual return on plan assets is as follows
(` in lakhs)

For the year ended

Sr. No. Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

a Actual return on plan assets  24  19 

A note on other risks 							     

Investment risk- The funds are invested with an external insurer (LIC of India). The insurer manages the 

Gratuity Fund and provides quarterly interest returns. Considering LIC is a state insurer with a sovereign 

guarantee and no history of defaults the investment risk is not significant.

Interest Risk- The Gratuity fund managed by an external insurer (LIC of India) is in the form of cash accumulation 

scheme with interest rates declared annually – A significant fall in interest (discount) rates may not be offset 

by an increase in value of Gratuity Fund, hence may pose an interest rate risk.

Longevity Risk- Since Gratuity is paid at retirement in form of lump sum and also during service at the time 

of termination to vested members, longevity risk is not applicable since maximum duration for benefit is till 

retirement age.				  

Salary Risk- The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future 

salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s 

liability.				  
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Expected future cash flow of defined benefit obligation:

(` in lakhs)

Year Amount
Year -1  60 

Year -2  39 

Year -3  38 

Year -4  93 

Year -5  73 

Years 6 to 10  166 
Total  468 

Note 35 - Financial Instrument 

Categories of financial instrument (` in lakhs)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Within twelve 
months

After twelve 
months Total Within twelve 

months
After twelve 

months Total

Financial assets 

Measured at amortised cost

(i) Trade Receivables  4,965  -    4,965  4,489  -    4,489 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents  8,148  -    8,148  9,750  -    9,750 

(iii) Other financials assets 

  (a) Security deposits  -    103  103  -    91  91 

  (b) Interest accrued on deposits with 
banks

 14  -    14  -    -    -   

Financial Liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost

(i) Trade payables ^

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises
 385  -    385  336  -    336 

(B)  Total outstanding dues of 

creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises

 2,261  -    2,261  3,093  -    3,093 

(ii) Other financials Liabilities

   (a)  Creditors for capital goods  10  -    10  17  -    17 

   (b)  Provision for expenses  576  -    576  789  -    789 

(iii) Lease Liabilities  88  64  152  79  152  231 

^Trade Payables are classified as current being payable on demand other than those classified as non-current.
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Financial risk management objectives									       

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on account of import risk and hedging activities; and export 

transactions which is monitored periodically. The Company leverages the global treasury operations of Honeywell to 

improve mitigation of risk relating to foreign exchange.							    

Foreign currency risk management		

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange 

rate fluctuations arise. The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 				  

The Company has not entered in any derivative contracts for hedging its foreign currency exposure.

Unhedged by derivative instruments/ or otherwise 	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

a)	 Liability - Trade Creditors

	 In GBP  -    1 

	 (Equivalent approximate in `)  -    62 

	 In USD  3  1 

	 Equivalent approximate in `)  222  47 

b)	 Asset - Trade Receivables

	 In USD*  1  0 

	 (Equivalent approximate in `)  65  26 

c)	 Asset - Bank Balances

	 In USD  -    -   

	 (Equivalent approximate in `)  -    -   

*Amount below the rounding off norm adopted by the company
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis									      

The Company is exposed mainly to the fluctuation in the value of USD and GBP. The following table details the 

company sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in functional currency against the relevant foreign currency. 

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjust there 

translation at the period end for a 5 % change in foreign currency rate.

(` in lakhs)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

USD Impact

5% Appreciation in USD

Impact on profit or loss for the year {Gain/(Loss)}  (8)  (1)

Impact on total equity as at the end of the year  (8)  (1)

5% Depreciation in USD

Impact on profit or loss for the year {Gain/(Loss)}  8  1 

Impact on total equity as at the end of the year  8  1 

GBP Impact

5% Appreciation in GBP

Impact on profit or loss for the year {Gain/(Loss)}  1  (3)

Impact on total equity as at the end of the year  1  (3)

5% Depreciation in GBP

Impact on profit or loss for the year {Gain/(Loss)}  (1)  3 

Impact on total equity as at the end of the year  (1)  3 

Credit risk management					   

Credit risk refers to the risks that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 

to the Company. The Company deals only with credit worthy counterparties and takes appropriate measures to 

mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults. Trade receivable consists of a large number of customers, spread 

across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition 

of accounts receivable.													          
							     

Liquidity risk management					   

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facility and by continuously 

monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.   

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from 

operations. The Company has no outstanding borrowings. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient 

to meet its current requirements.		
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(a)	 Current assets expected to be recovered within twelve months and after twelve months from the 
reporting date:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note 
reference

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Inventories 11  2,061  -    2,061  1,923  -    1,923 

Trade Receivables 5  4,965  -    4,965  4,489  -    4,489 

Other Current assets 10  143  -    143  170  -    170 

Other financial assets 7  14  -    14  -    -    -   

(b)	 Current liabilities expected to be settled within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting 
date:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Note 
reference

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Lease liabilities   15  88  -    88  79  -    79 

Trade Payables -dues of 

micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

16  385  -    385  336  -    336 

Trade payables -dues of 

creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small 

enterprises

16  2,261  -    2,261  3,093  -    3,093 

Other financial liabilities  17  586  -    586  806  -    806 

Other current liabilities  18  597  -    597  970  -    970 

Provisions   14  1,029  -    1,029  1,136  -    1,136 

Income tax liabilities 8  -    -    -    25  -    25 

Notes to the financial statements
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Note 36 -B-  Additional Disclosures pursuant to Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013:  			 

	 Trade receivable ageing (net)  	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment

Not 
due 

Total

Less than 
6 months

6 months  
-1 year

1-2  
years 

2-3  
years 

More  
than 3  
years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good

2025  1,271  103  61  18  -    3,655  5,108 

2024  762  56  44  15  2  3,752  4,631 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

which have significant increase 

in credit risk

2025  -    64  61  18  -    -    143 

2024  25  56  44  15  2  -    142 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

credit impaired

2025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– 

considered good

2025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 

which have significant increase 

in credit risk

2025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 

credit impaired

2025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

	 Trade payable ageing	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of payment

Not 
due 

Total

Less than 
6 months

6 months  
-1 year

1-2  
years 

2-3  
years 

More  
than 3  
years

MSME - undisputed dues
2025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

MSME - undisputed dues
2025  37  6  1  1  5  335  385 

2024  14  5  1  0  3  313  336 

Others - disputed dues
2025  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Others - undisputed dues
2025  265  45  13  2  134  1,802  2,261 

2024  208  324  -    31  134  2,396  3,093 
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Notes to the financial statements

i)	 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities  (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 

the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.									       

											         

ii)	 No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities  

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 

of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.	

Note 37						    

As set out in section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is required to contribute/ spend ` 29 lakhs 

(previous year ended March 31, 2024: ` 12 lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities, as calculated 

basis 2% of its average net profits of the last three financial years. 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(i) Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year  29  12 

(ii) Amount spent during the year,

     a. construction/ acquisition of any asset  -    -   

     b. on purposes, other than (a) above  29  12 

(iii) The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount 
required to be spent by the Company during the year,

 -    -   

(iv) Total of previous years shortfall amount,  -    -   

Company has contributed to Honeywell Hometown Solution India Foundation (HHSIF), trust controlled by Honeywell 

group for CSR activities. The trust has spent funds on activities of “Sustainable and Holistic Community Development 

Program”. Refer note 27 for related party disclosure.							     

Unspent CSR contribution NIL.								     
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Notes

Notes to the financial statements

Note 39
The Company maintains the books of account electronically and its back-up on daily-basis on a server located 
outside of India. These data are accessible in India at all times. The Company  notifies the  Registrar of Companies 
(ROC) about the person in control of the data in its Annual filing.							     
													           
Note 40
No direct database changes in accounting software are allowed and all data changes are governed at application 
layer to avoid system performance problems and to follow the principle of data minimization. There are alternate 
governing processes in place to mitigate any risk of unauthorized access to database.		

Note 41- Capital work in progress

(` in lakhs)

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 
1 year

1-2  
years

2-3  
years

More than 3  
years

Projects in progress 
2025  -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -   

Projects temporarily suspended
2025  -    -    -    -    -   

2024  -    -    -    -    -   

Company does not have any overdue capital work in progress.							    

	

Note 42 - Company does not have any transaction with Struck off companies except                                (` in lakhs)

Name of the company Relationship 
of Struck off 

company 

Transaction 
during the year

Balance 
outstanding as at 

year end *

2024-25
Not Applicable Nil -

None

2023-24
Customer Nil 0

Unitronics Automation Systems Private Limited

*Less than Rs 1 Lakh

								      
	 For and on behalf of the Board

	 Nagendranath Shankarappa	 Satish Agarwal
	 Director	 Director
	 DIN: 10186938	 DIN: 06927467

	 Place : Gurugram	 Place : Gurugram
	 Date : 29 August 2025	 Date : 29 August 2025	
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Route Map to the AGM Venue
8/14/2019 Regus - Chennai, KRM - Chetpet - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Regus+-+Chennai,+KRM+-+Chetpet/@13.0690411,80.2421525,18z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x3a5266653ef419b9:0xe6d8bc1f8b… 1/1

Map data ©2019 50 m 

Regus - Chennai, KRM - Chetpet
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



ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

40th Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, November 11, 2025

Full name of the members attending _________________________________________________

(In block capitals)

Folio No./Client Id _________________________________ DP ID: ________________________

No. of shares held: ___________________

Name of Proxy __________________________________________________________________

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member)

I hereby record my presence at the 40th Annual General Meeting of Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India 

Limited on Tuesday, November 11, 2025, at the registered office of the Company at 5th, 6th & 7th Floors, North Tower, 

KRM Plaza, No. 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai, Tamil Nadu – 600031 at 12.00 PM (IST)

(Member’s /Proxy’s Signature)

Notes:

1) 	 Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since further copies will not 

be available.

2) 	 The Proxy form, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 

FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.

3) 	 A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4) 	 In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by Proxy, shall be 

accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in 

which the names stand in the Register of Members.

5) 	 The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member from attending in person 

and voting at the meeting.
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FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U31901TN1984PLC011107

Name of the Company: Honeywell Electrical Devices and Systems India Limited

Registered office: 5th, 6th & 7th Floors, North Tower, KRM Plaza, No. 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai,  

Tamil Nadu – 600031 

Name of the Member(s):                                    

Registered Address:                                             

E-mail Id:

Folio No/Client Id: DP ID: 

 

I/We, being the member(s) of __________________ shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

Name : E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature: 

or failing him/her

Name : E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature: 

 

or failing him/her

Name : E-mail Id:

Address:

Signature: 




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as my/ our proxy to attend and vote(on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 40th Annual General Meeting 

of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, November 11, 2025, at the registered office of the Company at 5th, 6th & 

7th Floors, North Tower, KRM Plaza, No.2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai, Tamil Nadu – 600031 at 12.00 PM  

and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Sr. 
No.

Resolution(s)
Vote

For Against

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025, along with the Reports of the Directors and 

Auditors thereon.

To Appoint a Director in place of Mr. Nagendranath Shankarappa who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Satish Kumar Agarwal who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants as Statutory 

Auditors of the Company for a further term of 5 years.

4. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditors.

5. Appointment of Mr. Sameer Mahajan as Director

6. Appointment of Mr. Harish Maganlal Baijal as an Independent Director

	

Signed this _____day of __________ 2025

Signature of Shareholder		                     Signature of Proxy holder	 				  
	       

Notes:

1)	 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2) 	 The proxy need not be a member of the company.

Affix  

Revenue 

Stamps






